ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2017
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Matt C aman, Chair
Representative Zach Fansler, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative David East man

Represent ati ve Chuck Kopp
Representative Lora Reinbold

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Louise Stutes (alternate)
Representative Charisse MIlett (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :

SELECT COW TTEE ON LEQ SLATI VE ETH CS

Joyce Anderson - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BI LL NO. 77
"An Act making corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recommended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date."

- MOVED HB 77 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 77

SHORT TI TLE: 2017 REVISOR S Bl LL
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L

01/ 25/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 25/ 17 (H) JUD
02/ 06/ 17 (H) JUD AT 1:30 PM GRUENBERG 120

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2017



W TNESS REG STER

JOYCE ANDERSON

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics.

LI SA KI RSCH, Assistant Revi sor

Legi sl ative Legal Counsel

Legi slative Affairs Agency

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 77, explained
various revisions and answered questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 33: 25 PM

CHAI R MATT CLAMAN called the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 1:33 p.m Representati ves Kopp, LeDoux,
Fansl er, Eastman, Reinbold, and C aman were present at the call
to order. Representative Kreiss-Tonkins arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) :
SELECT COMM TTEE ON LEGQ SLATI VE ETHI CS

1: 34: 32 PM

CHAI R CLAMAN announced that the first order of business is the
appointment of Joyce Anderson to the Select Conmittee on
Legislative Ethic, put forth by Chief Justice of the Al aska
Suprenme Court, Justice Craig Stowers.

CHAI R CLAVAN opened public testinony.

1:35: 20 PM

JOYCE ANDERSON, advised that during 2001-2014, she was the
adm nistrator for the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics,
and based upon her know edge and experience on the conmttee and

believing she would be an asset both to the comrittee and the
| egi sl ature, submtted her application.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2017



CHAI R CLAMAN, after ascertaining no one wished to testify with
regard to the appointnent of Joyce Anderson to the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics, closed public testinony.

1: 36: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX commented that she has known Ms. Anderson
since 2005, when she was the director of the Select Conmttee on
Legi sl ative Ethics. She expressed that Ms. Anderson would be a
good addition as a nenber of the commttee and that her
i nstitutional know edge woul d be phenonenal .

1: 37: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN asked how she sees her role as a nenber
of the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics.

M5. ANDERSON responded that she sees her role as a bit different
from that of admnistrator or the executive director. She
explained that as a nenber of the Select Commttee on
Legislative Ethics she will review the nmaterials being presented
and provide her opinion based upon her experience interpreting
statutes and past decisions issued by the commttee. She
advised she would strictly look at it as a nenber of the
conmttee, and in the event the current admnistrator had
guestions she could provide background as she has done in the
past as a consultant for the conmttee.

1:39: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN asked, in the event there was a vacancy
in the position of admnistrator, would serving as a nenber of
the conmttee limt her fromever being able to fill that role.

M5. ANDERSON stated her belief that it would and pointed out
that she is retired and would not want to return to the full
time job of adm nistrator.

1: 39: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether M. Anderson woul d,
as part of her role as a nenber of the commttee, advise the

| egi sl ature when rules do not make sense. She recalled that,
after passing the ethics reform bill, M. Anderson lead the
ethics course that all legislators were required to take. At

one point, a legislator comented that a |law didn't make sense

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2017



and Ms. Anderson responded, "Don't blame me, you passed this
I aw. "

1:41: 04 PM

MS. ANDERSON responded that she [does consider it part of her
rolej]. She explained that she had, as admnistrator, advised
the House Judiciary Standing Commttee, Senate Judiciary
Standing Comm ttee and/or House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
when sonet hing needed to be tweaked because it was unnanageabl e
on an admnistrative level, enforcement level, or that it just
didn't work. Al so, under AS 24.60, one of the duties of the
Sel ect Committee on Legislative Ethics is to propose
| egi sl ati on, and she would definitely get back to the
appropriate legislators, or the |eadership, to advise when
sonet hi ng needed to be changed.

1:41:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP commented that he has worked wth M.
Anderson in various capacities over the last eight years and
found her to be professional, easy to speak with while offering
direct and forthright non-partisan advice. He expressed his
appreciation that Ms. Anderson is willing to be a nenber of the
Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics.

1: 42: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FANSLER said that in accordance wth AS
24.60.130, the House Judiciary Standing Commttee has reviewed
the qualifications of Chief Justice's appointee and reconmends
the [nane of the] appointee, Joyce Anderson, be forwarded to the
House for ratification. This does not reflect intent by any of
the nmenbers to vote for or against this individual during any
further sessions for the purposes of ratification.

1: 43: 09 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from1:43 p.m to 1:44 p. m

1:44:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN commented that he |ooks forward to
availing hinself on the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics

for any recomendati ons she may have based on her experience.

HB 77-2017 REVISOR S BI LL

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2017



1: 45: 21 PM

CHAI R CLAMAN announced that the |ast order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 77, "An Act meking corrective anmendnents to the
Al aska Statutes as recommended by the revisor of statutes; and
providing for an effective date."

1:45: 57 PM

LI SA KIRSCH, Assistant Revisor, Legislative Legal Counsel,
Legi sl ative Legal Servi ces, Legislative Affairs Agency,
explained that the revisor's bill is an opportunity to correct
any deficiencies, conflicts, and obsolete provisions in the
st at ut es. For the nobst part, she conmented, the changes are
m nor because her office avoids anything that nay be a
substantive change to the |aw It is generally "clean-up

provi sions" and corrections to nmake the statutes consistent.
She offered to answer specific questions or go through section
by secti on.

CHAIR CLAMAN asked that she highlight three to five sections
that may be of nore interest than others which represent a
flavor of the changes made.

1:47:12 PM

MS. KIRSCH responded that she could group them by category. She
expl ained there are a fair nunber of sections renoving the words

"but not limted to." Alaska has a statutory provision in Title
1 allowing her office to renobve that |anguage because the word
"including" doesn't need to be qualified "but not limted to."

She explained that provisions with general application to the
statutes as a whole are located in a provision under Title 1,
thereby, elimnating the need to repeat |anguage over and over
agai n.

CHAIR CLAMAN surmised this is an instance where words are
actually being taken out of the statute book.

M5. KIRSCH agreed, and she said the words are renoved because
they are unnecessary due to the provision under Title 1

1:47:56 PM

M5. KIRSCH advised that six sections delete, repeal, or update
obsol ete provisions, 22 sections deal with errors and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2017



oversights, things that may have been changed throughout the |aw
and then there was one spot that was m ssed. She pointed to the
end of the sectional and advised that a couple of definitions
are renoved because [the subject] word was renoved from the
chapter or the section that the word represented. Therefore
there is no longer a need for the definition because the word
bei ng defined is no | onger included, she said.

M5. KIRSCH advised there are 32 sections where the revisor's
office inproved the forner substance of the law, often it is
grammati cal changes and preferred |anguage. She expl ai ned t hat
the revisor's office is directed by Legislative Counsel to
follow the drafting mnual and there are certain preferred
phrases, and certain grammatical structures that are preferred
over others so that the statutes are consistent in their usage
of | anguage.

1:49:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS commented that he appreciates the
revisor's bill each year, and appreciates tighter and nore
mnimalistic statutes. He said that having spent hundreds if

not thousands of hours doing simlar work on WKkipedia wherein a
person attenpts to bring things into conformance of the Manual
of Style.

M5. KIRSCH responded that Representative Kreiss-Tonkins has a
uni que taste and that she shares those tastes.

1: 50: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether there is anything in the
bill, if this bill had not been introduced, that would inpact a
crimnal case where a person may, or may not, be seeing jai
time in disregard of the intent of the legislature, or in a
civil case where the person would | ose or gain property rights.

M5. KIRSCH answered that that is a broad question, and she could
not say with absolute certainty. Al t hough, she said she does
know that the revisor's office has not anmended any crimnal |aw
provi sions, at |least nothing under Titles 11 or 12. Her office,

she expl ained, generally provides the revisor's bill provisions
based on what title it would use, and it has perforned periodic
reviews of different titles of the statutes. There are no

changes to crimnal law directly, but she was unsure there m ght
not be a provision sonmewhere that may affect a crimnal |[|aw

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2017



provi si on. Al ways, she said, the goal is to avoid changing
substantive | aw.

M5. KIRSCH related that having said that, in the event there are
two provisions that do not match up and the revisor's office has
created sonething that nakes it parallel, it may avoid a problem
which is the goal. Such that, there may be sonething that was
not changed in a bill one year, such as a definition was |eft
in, and a court mght look at that and say it creates an
anbiguity. The purpose of the office, in part, is to avoid
conflicts between two provisions of law that mght create an
anbi guity probl em

1: 53: 00 PM

M5. KIRSCH, in response to Representative LeDoux, answered that
there is one revisor, two assistant revisors, and one advisor.

1: 53: 30 PM

M5. KIRSCH answered Representative LeDoux that she works for
Legi sl ative Legal, and the enployees of revisor's office are the
primary enployees involved in the revisor's bill. These
enpl oyees have other duties, such that all of the draft bills
pass through the hands of one of the assistant revisors, and the
hands of the revisor. She renmarked that a recent big project
was the republication of the statutes, and it has been
conpl et ed.

1:54:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN said he is also in favor of cleaning up
t he statutes whenever possible, although, he received a concern.
He pointed to page 4, |ast paragraph of Ms. Kirsch's menorandum
directed to Chair C aman, dated 1/27/17, which read as foll ows:

Text of Repeal ed Paragraphs:

AS 47.07.900(14)

(14) "nurse m dwi f e" nmeans a regi stered
professional nurse who is certified as an advanced
nur se practitioner under AS 08. 68. 850( 1) and
authorized to practice as a nurse mdwfe under
regul ati ons adopt ed in accordance W th AS
08. 68. 850(8) ;

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN advised the concern is regarding the
change to AK 47.07.900 dealing with "nurse mdw ves." He
pointed out that being from the Mtanuska-Susitna Valley there
are quite a few m dw ves and nurse m dw ves, and sonetines there
is a running battle between nurses and mdwves as to their
respective roles and potential conpetition for each other.
Wiile looking at renoving the definition of "nurse mdwfe,"
which no longer appears in this section of statutes - which is
the nursing board, he asked whether that definition appears
el sewhere in the statutes, because the m dw ves have their own
board and would clanor for equal recognition in statute if not
here then somewhere el se.

1:56: 04 PM

M5. KIRSCH responded that she does not have the ability to
search the electronic database here, but she wll get that
information to him later. She explained the reason this
definition is being renoved is because the term "nurse mdw fe"
is no longer used for that chapter. |If there is a need for that
definition, it would have to be done through a piece of

| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN asked, in the event there are nultiple
chapters dealing with simlar terns, would the revisor's office
recoomend renoving those definitions nentioned repeatedly
t hroughout the statutes, or would it recomend that those terns
used in every chapter should require a definition. Basi cal | y,
he said, is there an ability to reference definitions in another
portion of the statute if the chapter a person is |ooking at
references a term and does not define it, or should that term be
defined repeatedly in each chapter it appears.

1:57: 54 PM

M5. KIRSCH related that the decision is nmade on a case-by-case
basis, but there can certainly be general definitions that apply

to multiple places in the statutes. Oten, it will say "this
term -- whatever that termis, say nurse mdwfe, -- has the
neaning given in _ and then it |lists another statutory
section.” Al so, she reiterated, Title 1 has a nunber of
definitions, such as municipality or person, of which are terns
used throughout the statutes. She paraphrased that it wll
read: "unless there is a specific definition that applies in a
particular part of the statutes, this definition wll apply
t hroughout."” She related that the revisor's office does both of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2017



those things, and there are different reasons to choose to do
one or the other in different parts of the statute.

1:58: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to Sec. 28. [AS 37.06.020(d)
page 14, lines 23-25] which read as foll ows:

(d) Notwithstanding the guidelines in (b) of this
section, the legislature may appropriate any anount to
be comunity assistance [REVENUE SHARI NG f und.
Not hing in this section creates a dedicated fund.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noted that the revisor's office had
corrected an oversi ght.

1:59: 27 PM

M5. KIRSCH explained that Sec. 28 replaces "revenue sharing”
with "assistance," via Senate Bill 210, passed during the
Twenty-N nth Legislature, and made |aw under Chapter 44, 2016
Session Laws. She advised that those terms were replaced in

that manner throughout, and Sec. 28 is one that the revisor's
of fice m ssed.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD related that she could not recall what
Senate Bill 210 related to.

MS. KI RSCH responded that she could not recall.
2:00: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noted she had five sections with regard
to Ms. Kirsch's testinony that the revisor's office changed "the
substance or the formof the law." She referred to Sec. 14, [AS
14.18.020, page 9, lines 8-16], and asked how the form or
substance of the | aw was changed.

M5. KIRSCH advised this is a section where the revisor's office
is renoving "but not Ilimted to" which follows the word
"including.” She referred to a statutory provision in Title 1,
and she paraphrased, "anytinme in the Al aska Statutes that we use
the word "including' it is presuned to be followed by 'but not
l[imted to.'" Therefore, she reiterated, the words "not limted
to" are unnecessary and are being renoved.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- February 6, 2017



M5. KIRSCH continued that the next change, "based on" rather
than the "basis of," is a |language change and it is not neant to
change the substance of the law or its neaning.

2:01: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noted this is based on discrimnation
enpl oyment which is a large issue for the public, and it is not
known whether the unbrella is bigger here or if it is just "not
l[imted to" so it sounds like it is a broader unbrella.

M5. KIRSCH reiterated that the words "but not limted to" are
presuned to remain there due to the provision in Title 1
not hi ng has been changed by renoving themfromthis section.

2:02: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD said it is inportant "because you said
that -- it is going to change the formor substance of the |law "

M5. KIRSCH said that she msspoke and clarified that it is not
making a substantive change that would actually change the
effect of the |aw Rat her, it is changing the substance in the
sense of the form of the language to put it in a grammatical
form thereby, renoving the words "but not limted to" which are
al ready included by virtue of the provision in Title 1

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether that is the sane for [ Sec.
15. AS 14.20.450. Responsibilities of commi ssion] wherein the
revisor's office elimnates "but not limted to." She further
asked whet her there are any other changes in Sec. 15.

M5. KIRSCH answered, "No, that's the single change ..."

2:03:19 PM

CHAI R CLAMAN advised that the title of the previously discussed
Senate Bill 210, was "Community Revenue Sharing Program Change
to Community Assistance Program"” He remarked that in the

| egislature's infinite wisdomit chose to change the nane.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to Sec. 16 [AS 22.15.100],
Functions and powers of district judge and magistrate, page 9,
line 25, and asked whether there are any substantive changes in
their duties or responsibilities.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2017



M5. KIRSCH responded "No," the only change in that section is
the addition of the word "those" and the deletion of the word
"such."

2:04: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD queried why the rivisor's office put
t hese under the substance of the law if there is just one little
wor d.

2: 04: 58 PM

M5. KIRSCH explained that it is referred to in that manner
because it is changing the |language, it is making a grammatica
change. The word "such" is one that the revisor's office avoids
because it is being used in this case as a denonstrative
adj ecti ve. She remarked that the |anguage was traditionally
used by lawers but is disfavored in this day and age, it is a
| anguage change to reflect common usage of nodern Engli sh.

2:05:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to Sec. 23 [AS 23.40.225],
Exenpti on based on religious convictions, page 12, |line 26, and
asked her to expl ain.

M5. KIRSCH pointed out that it is also a deletion of the words
"but not limted to" which are unnecessary due to the provision
under Title 1, and reiterated that "including” is presumed to
i nclude those words following it.

2:06:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP comrented that the deletion of the term
"nurse mdw fe" was the result of a | aw passed | ast year.

CHAI R CLAMAN, after ascertaining no one wi shed to testify on HB
77, closed public testinony.

2:07: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX conplinmented Ms. Kirsch on all of the hard
work that has obviously taken place, and that she is aware
Legi sl ati ve Legal and Research Services works extrenely hard and
has |ost people in the |ast couple of years. She related that
there are tines Legislative Legal and Research Services is
working alnost 24/7, and the legislators truly appreciate its

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2017



work. In light of how overworked the staff of Legislative Lega
and Research Services are, she asked how necessary it is to
change things, such as Sec. 14, [AS 14.18.020], page 9, line 14,
whi ch read as foll ows:

(1) ... noninstructional duties based
on [ THE BASI S OF] sex or race; and

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX continued, as opposed to "on the basis

of ." She said she looks at that as "six to one - half dozen of
the other" and that "but not |limted to" is not of any huge
concern to her. She then expressed that she would rather not
use the limted hours overworking people with this type of
"stuff,"” but the bill 1is finished and she appreciates the
di li gence.

2:09: 32 PM

V. KIRSCH responded that at the danger of becom ng
phi |l osophical, she views her duty as a revisor to create the
best possible |aw she can. She remarked that she is proud of
the body of law in Al aska, as opposed to a person working their
way through the federal statutes or regulations. Gven the |aws
she has reviewed from other states, jurisdictions, and federa
| aw, she pointed out that Al aska has a sensible, coherent, and a
consi stent body of |law that she appreciates and it is inportant

to her. Wiile it may appear there are differences w thout any
inmportant distinction, legal cases can sonetinmes turn on a
single word, she pointed out. The revisor's office tries hard

to create a sensible, consistent, coherent body of law that is
not caught up in needless legal terns, or terns of art, making
it nore difficult for the average person to understand, she
remar ked. The changes may appear to be mnor changes, but she
takes them seriously, and it is inportant to her as a revisor,
she stressed.

2:11:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN referred to work she does in review ng
the statutes, and asked whether the revisor's office has ever
di scovered any problematic conflicts in the |aw

M5. KIRSCH responded that, in part, the revisor's office
performs a review of a certain group of titles and determ nes
the changes during the interim O course, she said, during the
session if it discovers difficulties or problens in the context
of an open section in a bill, it wll suggest the change

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2017



improving the section, or correcting a problem to the
| egislator to possibly include the change as part of their bill.
In that manner the body has a chance to look at it and in the
event the bill passes, those changes are made.

2:12: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KOPP noted that it is amazing how nuch the
revisor's office catches how one statute changes so many ot her
areas in the law, and it gets into repealers. He thanked the
revisor's office for all the work it does in helping legislators
catch things which seem to be the bigger projects |egislators
take on, the spider's web is enornmous in the law and it has been
effective in catching those, he comment ed.

2:13: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EASTMAN referred to Ms. Kirsch's earlier
testinmony about the difference between Al aska's statutes and
other state's statutes, and related that her coments are
accurate and he appreciates there is soneone going through and

perform ng that work. He offered that it gives him peace of
mnd as an Alaskan that the nmmjor errors, iif any, wll be
caught.

2:13:53 PM

CHAI R CLAMAN observed that the use of "but not limted to" is a
conversation he has had when drafting contracts as to whether
those words were necessary. He offered that "we are not al ways”
using words economcally and he appreciates the details. The
| egislature gives Legislative Legal and Research Services the
| argest dose of work during session and appreciates that the
revisor's office's work takes place out of session so it is not

burning the mdnight oil. He said he also appreciates
Representative LeDoux's perspective that it <can be tine
consum ng.
2:15:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER said he, too, is appreciative of all of
the hard work, and to tend toward Representative LeDoux's
comments, he related that, hopefully, as technol ogy advances it
will cut down on sone of these kinds of situations. He
suggested, in not wshing to burn the l|egislature' s enployees
out with this type of work, perhaps |egislators should consider

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2017



all of the ramfications when drafting their |egislation and put
it in on the front end.

CHAIR CLAMAN offered the menbers an opportunity to review his
book relating to Uniform Law Recommendati ons and a manual on how
to wite clear and concise |egislation.

2:16: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FANSLER noved to report HB 77, Version 30-
LSO010\ O out of committee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying zero fiscal notes. There being no objection,
HB 77 passed fromthe House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:17:18 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 2:17 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 6, 2017



